’C'/\ V. SANKAR AIYAR & CO.
< CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Satyam Cinema Complex, Ranjit Nagar Community Centre, New Delhi - 110 008
Flat No. ' 202,203 Tel. (011) 25702691, 25704639, 43702919
& 301 Tel. (011) 25705233, Telefax : (011) 25705232
E-mail : newdelhi@vsa.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of

RCCPL Private Limited (Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RCCPL Private Limited (‘the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March, 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March,
2021, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report,
we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.
Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this auditor's

report.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generafly accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibifity also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate interna! financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess the Roard of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibility for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material f, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coltusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materiaj
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them alf relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

TP

SR A T
\\-(@u DELHI ﬁ§
# q OG0BV »
Crgg .;iﬁffﬂ@m o A“i?
Sl ERED RCCOU




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”} issued by the Central Government

of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according fo the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2, Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b}

{©)

(d)

(e)

0

(@

(h)

We have sought and obtained alf the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31¢ March, 2021 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 202t from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “"Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration pald to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us: '

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

i. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any on long term long-term contracts including derivative confracts.

ii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred during the year to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.,

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 105208W

Place : New Delhi {Ajay Gupta)
Dated : 10" May, 2021 Partner

Membership No. 090104
ICA] UDIN ~ 21080104AAAACQ1116
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Report on even date)

i a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the programme, a pertion of
the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

i Asinformed to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management except goods
in transit. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. Discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of the inventories between the physical inventories and book records were not material, having
regard fo the size and nature of the operations of the Company.

it The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limifed fiability
partnerships or other parties required to be covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

W Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

v The Company has not accepted deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules
framed there under.

vi  We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148{1) of the Act and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the records for the year with a view to determine whether they are accurate
and complete.

vii a) According to the records of the Company, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities, We are informed that there is no liability of the Company on account of employees’ state
insurance duting the year. There were no arrears of undisptited statutory dues as at 31* March, 2021, which
were outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no disputed dues which have remained unpaid as on 31% March, 2021 in respect of income tax

or duty of customs. The disputed dues of different years, relating to service-tax, sales-tax or or duty of excise
or value added tax, which have remained unpaid as on 31% March, 2021 for which appeals are pending as

under:
Nature of statute Nature of dues Amount (in | Period to which the Forum where? dispute is
B e D — Crores) amount relates pending
Bihar Value added tax Addl. Commissioner
Act, 2005 VAT 217 2018-17 (Appeals)
The Bihar Goods and Transition 0.63 July'17 to Commissioner (Appeals)
Services Tax Act, 2017 | amount (VAT) ’ March’'2018 PP

viii On the basis of the verification of records and information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of joans and borrowings to banks. The Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions / Government in the books of accounts at any time during the year. The
Company has not issued any debentures. Therefore the question of default in repayment of dues of
debenture hoiders does not arise.
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The Company did Rot raise any money by way of initial / further public offer (including debt instruments) and
term loans faken during the year have been applied for the putpose for which they were obtained.

According to information and explanations given {o us and the representation obtained from the management,
no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers and employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration paid or provided by
the Company Is in accordance with section 197 of the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi}) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According o the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disciosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from the
management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with direciors or persons
connected with him. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 109208wW

e a

Place : New Delhi {Ajay Gupta)
Dated : 10* May, 2021 Partner

Membership No. 090104
ICAI UDIN - 21090104AAAACQ1116
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

{Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ of our report on
even date}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the interna! financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control ovet financial reporiing criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financiat controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financiat reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evalualing the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporiing includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable defail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company,
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a materia! effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internat Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due o error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 312

March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the {CAI

For V. Sankar Alyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Py 77

Place : New Delhi (Ajay Gupta)
Dated : 10" May, 2021 Partner
Membership No. 090104
ICAl UDIN —~ 21090104AAAACQ1116
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RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly ¥nown as Relizance Cement Conpany Private Limited
CIN No : UZ6240MH2C0712TC 173458

Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2021

(Rs. in crores)

. As al As at
Particulars Notes 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2A 2,632.48 2.636.50
Capital work-in-progress 28 1.650.92 1,134.G3
Other Inlangible assets 2C 31.79 9.85
Financial assels - Others 3 103.765 93.81
Other non-cusrent assets 5 104.29 104.88
Non-current tax assels { Net ) 48.27 47.52
Sublotai (A) 4,571.51 4,026,592
Curreut Assets
Inveniories 6 220.38 205.12
Financia! Assets
Investments 7 78.07 92.91
Trade receivables 8 95.18 78.71
Cash and cash equivaients 9 54.03 §.13
Others 10 293.83 230.45
Other current assets 11 219,565 147.10
Subtotat (B} 961.04 762.42
Total Assets (A+B) 5,532.55 4,788.01
EQUITY AND LIABHITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 312.82 312.82
Oiher equity 1,190.79 916.07
Towal equity {C} 1,503.61 1,228.89
LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabtlities
Financial Liabililies
Borrowings 13 2,625.76 2,512 .54
Other financia! liabifities 14 236.45 160.80
Provisicns 15 21.55 13.59
Deferred tax lizbilities (net) 4 142.85 34 .61
Tota! Non Current Liabilities (D) 3,026.62 2,721.54
Current Liahilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 - 20.50
Trade payables - Due to 17
Micro enterprises and small enferprises 12.12 0.97
Cther than micro enterprises and small enterprises 192.66 174.03
Other financial Liabilities 18 653.10 579.16
Frovisions 19 0.74 0.74
Ciher cusrent Habilities 20 143.70 63.18
Totzl Current Liabilities (£) 1,002,32 838.58
Tetal Equity and Liabiities (C+D+E) 5,532.55 4,789.01

As per our attached report of even date.
For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.109208W

b WWM” 3
Ajay Gupta Harsh V. Lodha
Partner Chairman
Membership No.080104 {DIN: 00394094} {DIN: 00179118)
v) /W'—T ?\\9\_&-\\) bo. "Q"\“’“L
Afun Agarwal < Shardha Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 10.05.2021

Plzce : New Delhi
Pated : 10.05.2021

SNQ\'{AR AIYAR &

¢
4T NEW DELHI e
G FRN 100208W /o

TR T U




RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No : U26840MH2007PTC173458

EStatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue from operafions
Other income

Total Income

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock in trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance cosis

Depreciation and amorlization expense

Cther expenses

Total Expenses

Profit  (Loss) before tax
Tax Expenses

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Income Tax For Earlier Years
Profit f (Loss) for the year

Qther Comprehensive Income

{Rs. in crores)

Other comprehensive income nol fo be rectassified 1o profif or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Tax Effect on above
Cther comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earning per Equity Share of Rs 10 each
Basic & Diluted {Rs})

As per our attached report of even date,
For V.Sankar Alyar & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.109208W

P Fors

Ajay Gupta
Partner
Membership No.090104

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 10.05.2021
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Year ended Year ended

Notes 31.03.2021 31,03.2020
21 2,829.58 2.641.21
22 9.67 6.34
2,839.26 2.647.55

23 495.75 455.08
24 2.47 11.83
25 47.98 (24.89)
26 102.47 108.76
27 175.93 209.05
28 174.35 167.15
29 1,456.48 1.436.19
245543 736347

383.82 284.38

4

108.46 14519

. (0.03)

275.36 13522

(0.86) (0.60)

(0.22) (0.15)
10.64) (0.45)

77472 13879

30 8.80 4.45

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ﬁ.’? : ({i o,

“HarehVTEERE TN
Chairman
(DIN: 00384084)

;&‘rﬁ/‘r‘“’f
run Ag al

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 10.05.2021

Wholeti

e Director
(PIN: 006179118}

Lhoadies h(\"“& A

Shardha Agarwal
Company Secretary




RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN Mo : 1126940MH2007PTC173458

{a} Equity Share Capital

(Rs. in crores)

Pariiculars

Amount

Balance as at 31.03.2019
Changes in equity share capilal during year
Balance as at 31.03.2020
Changes in equity share capifal during year
Balance as at 31.03.2021

312.82

31z2.82

3i2.82

{h} Other Equity

Reserves and Swrplus
Particulars . Securities Total impac.t on
E:ztri:;;egd Premium Other equity
Account
As at March 31, 2019 102.25 675.50 777.75
Profit for the year 138.22 138.22
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations (net of tax) (0.45) {0.45)
Impact of adoption of Ind AS-116 (0.45) (0.45)
As at March 31, 2020 240.57 675.50 916.07
Profit for the year 275.36 275.36
Remeasurement of post employment benefil obligations (net of tax) (0.64) (0.64)
As at March 31, 2021 515,29 675.50 1,190.79

As per our attached report of even date.

For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No.109208W

(e a

Ajay Gupta
Partner
Membership No.090104

Place : New Dethi
Dated : 10.05.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CO— g
Harsh V. Lodha Prachefa Majumdar
Chairman Whol@gpirector
{DIN: 00394054) {DIN: 00179118}

Nt dina l\fgwwL

Shardha Agarwai )
Company Secretary

]
Arun Algarwal '
ChieffFinancial Officer

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 10.05.2021




RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly known as Rellance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC173458

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st Mar 2021

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before Tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation

Interest Income

Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund (FVTPL)

Fair Value of Mutual Fund (FVTPL)

interest Income ot Financiat Asset
Unreatised Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Finance Costs

MTM of forward contract

Unwinding of interest on mine closure liability
Unwinding of interest on Loan

Allowance for doubtful debts

(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets ( Net }
Loss on Discard of Fixed Asseis & CWIP
QOperating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adjusimenis for :

Trade Receivables

Inventories

Other financial asset

Other Current Asset

Other Non Current Asset

Trade Payables

Other Financial #iabilities

Other Liabiiities

Provisions

Cash generated from operations

Direct Taxes Paid

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from investing Activities:
Purchase of Tangible Asset

Sale of Tangible Asset

Purchase of IMangible Asset
Purchase of Capital Work In Progress
Capital Advances

Purchase of Equity Investment & Compuisority Convertible Debentures
(Purchase) / Sale of lnvestments
Gain on Mutual Fund

Investment in Fixed Deposits Net
Inferest received

Met Cash used in Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Leng term Borrowings
Repaymetits of Long Term Borrowings
Proceeds from Shorl Term Borrowings
Repayments from Shorl Term Borrowings
Interest Paid

Repayment of Lease Obligations

interest on Leases

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Closing Balance)

Break up of Closing Cash & Cash Equivalent
Current Accound
Cashin Hand
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{Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2029
383.82 284.38
174.35 167.15

(1.18} (0.74)

(3.12) {1.80)

(0.05) {0.29)

{0.10) (0.04}

0.11 7.78
171.02 207.83
6.20 (2.32}
0.36 0.33
3.63 1.04

- (0.67)

{0.02)

14.06 11.39
749.08 B74.04
{16.47) 6.97
{15.25) (7.14)

(107.77) 22.84

{72.45) (96.91)

(3.61) 0.40

30.87 {40.96)

16.25 95.80

80.52 (24.22)

3.34 1.85
664.51 632,67

(0.75) (44.03)
663.76 588.64
(106.68) (270.84)

0.08

{22.13) {0.19)
(480.99) (592.08)
{24.99) G7.15

- (5.30)

18.01 7.64

- 2.1
32.19 (3.37)
1.18 0.74
{583.33) {793.82)
419.57 547.92
(216.57) (168.69)
108.26 524.13
{128.78) {604.61)
(214.89) (214.51)

{0.78) (0.47)

{1.26) (0.71)
{34.53) 183.06

45.90 (22.12)

8.13 30.25
54.03 8.13
53.95 8.07

0.08 G.06
54.03 8.13




RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC 173458

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2021 - Continued

Reconciliation of liabilities from finacing activities

As at 31.03.2020

Proceeds

Repayments

Foreign exchange and other adjustment
As at 31.03.2021

As per our attached report of even date.
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{Rs. In crores}

Long term Shorf ferm Total
bofrowings borrowings B
2,691.66 20.50 271216
419.57 108.26 527 .83
216.57 128.76 348,33
0.22 - .22
2,894.88 - 2,894.88
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Place : Kolkata
Dated : 10.05,2021
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RCCPL Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company Overview

RCCPL Private Limited (Formerly Reliance Cement Company Private Limited) (the Company”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Birla Corporation Limited, the flagship company of the M. P. Birla group. The Company is incorporated
in india having its registered office located at Industry House, 2™ Floor, 159, Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai —
400020. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading of different types of cement and allied products.
The Company had set up a fully integrated cement unit at Maihar (Madhya Pradesh) and grinding unit at Butibori
{Maharashtra) and Kundanganj (Uttar Pradesh). The Company also has limestone and coaf mines.

Basis of preparation and Presentation

These standalone financial statemenis of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time} and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule |11). These standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded fo
the nearest crore (INR 0,000,000), except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis except for the following;

i. Derivative financial instruments,

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilittes measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

fii. Befined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company's normal operating cycle
(twelve months) and other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the Act.

Company’s financiel statements are presented in India Rupees, which is its functional currency and all values are
rounded to nearest crore, except when otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make cerfain estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. The management believes that these
estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent. However, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future period. An
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are mare likely
to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumpticns turning out to be different than those originally assessed
have been disclosed in note no. 1.4, Detailed information abow! each of these estimates and judgments is included
in the relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected fine item in the financial
statements.

Significant Estimates and judgments

a. Depreciation and useful lives of Properly, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of
the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on technical evaluation and take into account anticipated
technological changes. Depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.




k. Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and fiabililies are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulling from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.

c. Estimation of defined benefits obligations

Employee benefit obfigations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortatity and
withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, anticipation of future
salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the
resulting cafculations.

d. Leases:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease
contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the aption to renew or terminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either {he renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise
the option to renew or to terminate.

1.5 Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold land other than used for mining activity are carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are slated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrawing cost and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets {o its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognized when replaced.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method on the basis of estimated useful
life of the assels except freehold land used for mining activily which is depreciated based on unit of production
method. The expected useful life and the expected residual value are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If
the expected useful life and the expected residual value of an asset are significantly different its previous estimates,
depreciation is being provided on the revised depreciable amount of the assets over the remaining useful life.

The management estimates the useful lives for the tangible assets as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life
Leasehold land : Over the period of lease
Freehold mines : Units of production*
Building and roads : 3 - 60 years
Plant and machinery and electrical installations 10 - 25 years
Railway sidings : 15 years
Office equipment : 5 years
Computer and peripherals : 3 -6years
Furniture and fixtures : 10 years
Motor vehicles : 8 years

For the above classes of assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation carried out, the
management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets,
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1.6

.7

1.8

1.9.

The residual values are nol more 5% of the original cost of the assets.

“Cost of freehold land used for mining aclivities are depreciated on the basis of quantity of minerals actuaily
extracled during the year with respect to the estimated total quantity of extractable mineral reserves.

Capital work in progress
Capital work-in-progress, are carried at cost, less impairment loss, if any.

Mine development expenses includes expenses on account of prospecting, expenses for regulatory clearances,
exploration and evaluation of mineral pre-operative expenditure incidental / directly attributable 1o development,
borrowing cost efc. These expenses are carried forward and disclosed ‘Project development expenditure’ and will
be capiialized under appropriate head once the mine starts the commercial production.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital work in progress.

Intangible Assets

Computer and other licensed scftware are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amoriization and
accumudated impairment losses, if any.

Mining Rights:

Mining Rights covered under are stated at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated
amortisation & accumulated impairment loss, if any. Estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site af present value are also capitalized as separately as ‘Mine Closure asset’.

Intangible assets are amortised using straight line method over its useful fife except mining right which are amortised
based on unit of production method. The management estimates the useful lives for the intangible assets as follows:

intangible asset Useful {ife
Computer softwares : 3 years
Licensed software X Over the license period
Mining rights and development : Unit of Production method

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset {tangibie and
intangible) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash
generating unit is made. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and
its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. The smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit (CGU). An asset or CGU whose carrying vaiue exceeds
its recoverable amount is considered impaired and is written down {o its recoverable amount. Assessment is also
done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an
asset in prior accounting periods may no fonger exist or may have decreased.

Stripping cost

The stripping cost incurred duting the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as an asset if such cost
provides a benefit in terms of improved access to ore in future periods and following criteria are met.

» lis probable that the future economic benefits (improved access to an ore body) associated with the
stripping activity will flow to the entity

+  The entity can identify the component of an ore body for which access has been improved, and

+  The costs relati to the improved access to that component can be measured reliably
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1.10

1.12

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated on a unit of production basis over the life of the identified
component of the ore body that became more accessible as a result of the stripping activity and is then stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The expenditure which cannot be
specifically identified to have been incurred to access ore is charged to revenue, based on stripping ratio

Leases
Where the Company is a lessee:

The Company's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for Plant & equipment, fand and building. The
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for
a consideration. This policy has been applied to contract existing and entered into on or afler Aprit 1, 2019.
The Company has elected not to recognize Right-of-use Assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recagnizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. The Company recognises a Right-of-use Asset
and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The Right-of-use asset is initially measured at cast, which
comprises the initiat amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial costs incurred. The Right-of-use Asset is subsequently depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured on amortised cost
basis. In the comparative period, lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption 1o leases thai are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on shorl-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and nef realizable value. Raw material, fuel, stores and spare parts, packing
materials and traded goods cost includes cost of purchases and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
the present location and condition. Cost is determined using weighted average mefhod.

Work-in-progress and finished goods cost comprises of raw material, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overhead. Cost is determined using weighted average methad, Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,

Financial Instruments

1 FEinancial asset
i. Initial recognition and Measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are inilially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
allributable {o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities, which are not fair value through
profit and loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

ii. Subsequent measurement
¥ Financial assets carried af amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and |nterest
onprinmpai outstanding. PR




> Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A financial asset is subsequently measures at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business modet whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contfraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal cutstanding.

¥ Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through
prefit and foss.

iii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost based on expected credit
loss model (ECL). The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on frade receivables. The Company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs al each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses historical loss experience to determine
the impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward locking estimates are analysed.

Financial liabilities

i. Initial recognition and Measurement

Ali financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in profit and loss as finance
cost.

ii. Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For trade
and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to short ierm maturity of these instruments.

Equity instruments

The Company measures its equity investment other in subsidiary at fair value through profit and loss. However,
where the Company's management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair value
gains and losses on specific equity instruments in other comprehensive income (currently no such choice
made), there is no subsequent reclassification on sale or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses fo the
statement of profit and loss.

Interest income is recognized using effective interest rate method. Dividends are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assel expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A
financial liability (or part of financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.




1.13

1.14

1.15

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enlers into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps and cross currency swaps to manage its exposure to inlerest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. The
Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for specutative purposes,

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair vaiue at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasurad to their fair value at the end of each reporling period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at net of transaction cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds {net of transaclion cost) and the redemption amount is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss over the period of borrowings using the efiective interest rate.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified as liabilities. The dividend
on these preference shares is recognized in statement of profit and loss as finance cost.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits includes salaries and wages, provident fund, gratuity, compensated absences and other welfare
and terminal benefits.

Short ferm employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These
benefit includes performance incentive, salaries and wages, bonus and leave travel allowance and other welfare
and terminal benefits.

Defined confribution plans:

Contributions 1o defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, superannuation, etc are recognized as on
expense during the year in which the employee renders the related service.

Compensated absence:

Benefits comprising compensated absences as per company policy constitute other long term employee benefits.
The iiability for compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent
actuary at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Graiuity

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period
of service as giving rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to
build up the finat obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
prevailing market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement, comprising acluarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recegnised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the pericd of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated hy...
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit Kability or asset. Defined b
costs are categorized as follows: )
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1.16

1.17

- Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements),
- Net interest expense or income; and
- Remeaswemerd

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefil costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
henefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The Company has taken the group policy with Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited to meet its
obligation towards gratuity. Liability with respect to the gratuity plan is determined based on an acluarial valuation
done by an independent actuary.

Foreign currency transactions and transalations
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR}, which is Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and Translations:

Transaclions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transactions dates.
Reatised gains and losses on settlement of fareign currency transactions are recognized in the statement of profit
and foss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and
resultant exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss except exchange differences
retating cerlain long term monetary items outstanding as at 313 March, 2016 in so far as they relate to the acquisition
of fixed assets are adjusled in the carrying amount of such, in accordance the option available to the Company
under Ind AS 101.

In case of an asset, expense or income where an advance is paid/ireceived, the dale of transaction is the date on
which the advance was initially recognised. If there multiple payments or receipts in advance, muttiple dates of
transactions are determined for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred tax. Current income tax expense is measured at the
amount expecled to be paid 1o the taxation authorities in accordance with the governing provisions of the Income-
tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheel method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date, Deferred tax assets
and fiabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused fax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Income tax {Current and Deferred) is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates
to the items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax assets and Current {ax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the recognised
amounts and where it intends either {o settle on a net basis, or {o realise the asset and settle the liability
simuitaneously.
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1.18 Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 eslablishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires
that revenue be recognised at an amount that refiects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

ind AS 115 requires entities o exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies
the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfiling a contract.
In addition, the standard requires relevant disclosures.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amourd that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Sale of goods

The Company recognises revenue from the sale of cement and related products when control of the goods are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitted in exchange for those goods.
Generally, control is fransferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when goods is made availabie 1o the
customer, provided transfer of title occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or
fulure obligations with respect to goods shipped. Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the Government). Generally, the credit period varies
between 0-90 days from the shipment or delivery of goods as the case may be.

I case of discounts, rebates, credits, price incentives or similar terms, consideration are determined based on its
mast likely amount, which is assessed at each reporting date.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial assef is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured refiably. interest income is accrued on time basis, by
reference 1o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. It is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated fulure cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

All cther income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount that will be
received.

1.19

1.20

Government Grants

Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the grant /
subsidy will be received and alt attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relating to income is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them
on a systematic basis to the costs, which it is intended to compensate. VAT/GST incentives are recognized in the
statement of profit and toss under other operating revenues.

Grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in Non-current liahilities as deferred income and are
credited to Profit and loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of related assets.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing. General and specific borrowing
cosls directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production or development of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assels, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.




1.21 Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, itis probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liabitity is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from events and whose existence is
only confirmed by one or more doubtiul fulure events or when there is an obligation that is not recognised as a
liabitity or provision because it is not likely that on outflow of resources will be required

1.22 Segment reporting

Segment information is reported as per Indian Accounting Standard 108. The identification of operating segment is
consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the chief operating decision maker.

1.23 Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) through a notification, amended Schedule li{
of the Companies Act, 2013

The amendments revise Division |, Il and [Il of Schedule I and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments
relating o Division Il which relate fo companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:
«  Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
* Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and
intangible asset under development.

+ If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.,

»  Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, disclosures of certain rations, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of
immovable property not held in name of company, foans and advances o promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property heid etc.

+  Where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period,
details and reasons thereof shall be disclosed.

+ Disclosure of any transactions with companies struck off.

Statement of profit and loss:

«  Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Respoensibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto ar virtual
currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the nofes forming part of the standalone financial
statements,

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by the
law.
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RCCPL Private Linited

28. Capital work in Progress (Rs. in crores}

As at As at

Particulars 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020

A. Assels under construction * 1,300.46 850.36
B. Expenditure incured on Project Development Pending Captilisation / allocation 350.46 283.67
Sub total {A) 1,650.92 1,134.03

* This includes Capital goods in transit Rs 5.45 cr (PY - Rs. Nif)

Particutars Asat Asat
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Pre operative expenes pending allocation:
Opening Balance 283.67 288.31
Salaries, wages and bonus 17.24 12.84
Finance costs # 54.46 17.08
Depreciation 0.31 017
Licences,Cleareances, Taxes efc 4.31 t.22
Other Expenses 11.73 5.39
Total pre-operative expenses 371.72 325.01
Less: Capitalised/ chazged during the year {0.25) {29.96)
Less: Reclassification ( Refer Note No 5 ) {6.95} -
l.ess: Write off (CWIP) {14.06) (11.38)
Balances included in Capital work in progress 350.46 283.67

# The borrowing cost on specific borrowings has been capitalised at the rate applicable for respective borrowings.

2C. Other Intangible Assets

. Co1 o . Minin

Particulars ng\:\s:::r Mining Right Closure Agsset Total
Gross Biock
As at Mar 31, 2018 4.22 6.93 3.31 14.46
Additions 0.19 - - 0.19
Disposal - - - -
As at Mar 31, 2020 4.41 6.93 3.31 14.65
Additions 0.24 21.89 0.96 23.09
Disposal - - - -
As at Mar 31, 2021 4.65 28.82 4.27 37.74
Accumulated Depreciation
As at Mar 31, 2019 2.65 0.70 0.45 3.80
Charge for the year 0.60 0.26 0.14 1.00
Dispesal - - - -
As at Mar 31, 2020 3.25 0.96 0.59 4.80
Charge for the year 0.60 0.41 0.14 115
Disposal - - - -
As at Mar 31, 2021 3.85 1.37 0.73 5.95
Net carrying amount
As at Mar 31, 2020 1.16 5.97 2.72 2.85
As at Mar 31, 2021 0.80 27.45 3.54 31.7¢

‘/AR Ai‘{f\;\ g‘\
NEVDELHE 'ON
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RCCPL Private Limited

Other Non Cutrent Financlal Assets
(Al amortized cost)

Bank Deposits *

Security deposils
{Refer nole 37}

Incentive receivables (Refer footnote of Note 10)

* Bank Deposits represents Deposits marked lien in favour of Government Authorities/ Banks

Deferred tax asset ! {liability)

(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
9.07 4.89
25.51 24.36
69.18 64.56
103.76 93.81

The significant component and classification of deferred tax assets and liabilities on account of timing differences are:

Deferred tax agsets on account of -

Trade receivables

Mine closure Eability

Items allfowable on payment basis

Carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation

Deferred 1ax liabilities on account of -

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
Others

Net Deferred tax assets / (liability)

MAT credit entittement

Total Deferred tax assels / {liabitity)

Recencilation of Deferred tax assel/ (liability)

Opening deferred tax asset (Net)

Deferred tax (expense) / credit recorded in statement of profit and loss
Deferred tax charge recorded in OC#

Impact of Ind AS - 116 adoplicn directly in opening retained earning
Closing deferred tax Assets, net

The major components of income fax expense
Current income tax charge (MAT)
Deferred tax charge / (credit)
Income Tax For Earlier Years
income {ax expenses reporied in the statement of profit or loss

Recongiliation of fax expense and the accounting profit
Accounting profit before income tax
Enacted income tax rate

Statutory income tax at enacted rate
Permanent disallowances
Deferred tax asset on IT losses not recognised earlier

Adjustment to carried forward losses pursuant to certain disallowances under the

Direcl Tax Vivad Se Vishwas Act,2020.
Tax effect on items chargable al differential zates & others
MAT credit entitlement written off

Other Non-current Assets
{ Unsecured, Considered Gooed )

Capital advances”
Prepaid expenses
Other receivable™
Deposit under protest
{Refer note 31(a){iv)}

*Capital Advance includes advance io a Company where a director is interested

* Refer foot note to note no. 3

**Other receivable represents the realizable valie of expenditures incurred on shelved future projects.

I
REARAIVAL 3

o, bt :

&b
*\\'Q\N DELHE ¥
Sy :

1.03 1.03
2.17 1.19
10.03 2.95
39.92 137.14
53.15 14731
211.73 175.82
(15.73) 1.10
(142.85) (3461
(142.85) (34.61)
(34.61) 110.28
(108 .46} {145.19)
0.22 0.15
- 0.15
{142 85) (34.61)
108.46 145.19
- {0.03)
108.46 14516
383.82 284.38
25.17% 25.17%
96.61 71.58
7.69 3.16
- (0.03)
3.97 §
0.19 9.49
- 60.96
106.46 145.16
80.52 9167
1.96 2.47
.95 .
14.86 11.04
104.29 104.88

1.74 -




RCCPL Private Limited

Inventories

Stores and spares
Packing materials
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Fuel

Note: The above Inventory incfudes Material in transit as under
Raw materials

Fuel

Stores and spares

Investments
(Classified al Falr Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth (74440 units) (PY: Nif)

Baroda Liguid Fund Plan B - Growth (38006 units) (PY:21849 units)

HDFC Liguid Fund Direct Plan - Growth (Nif) (PY: 20562)

HDFC Overnight Fund Direct Plan - Growth (Nil} (PY: 3368 uni¢s)

ICICI Prudential Liguid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (164170 units) {PY: 340582 units)
ICIC! Prudential Saving Fund - Direct Plan - (Nif) (PY: 515290 units)

Invesco India Money Market Fund Direct Plan Growth {Nily (PY: 15173 units)

Kotak Savings Fund Direct Plan Growth (Ni#) (PY: 6146240 units)

Kotak Liguid Fund Direct Plan Growih (26494 units) (PY: Nif)

L&T Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth {Nil) {PY: 36758 units}

L&T Money Market Fund Direct Plan - Growth (Nil) (PY: 2454135 units)

NIPFPON India Liguid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option (21890 unils) (PY: Nil)
SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growlh (62117 units) (PY: Nil)

TATA Liguid Fund Direct Plan - Growth {15405 units) (PY: 31841 units}

Trade Receivables

From related parties
Unsecured, considered good

From QOthers

Secured, censidered good
Unsecured, considered good
Significant increase in Credit Risk
Allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days.

{Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
61.31 7161
9.25 3.52
39.02 24.99
15.19 30.85
22.63 54.05
72.98 14,20
220.38 205.12
4.94 1.10
46.98 0.70
2.11 G.10
54.03 1.90
17.01 -
9.01 5.00
- 8.03
- 1.00
5.00 10.01
- 20.11
- 3582
- 20.19
11.02 -
- 10,00
- 5.05
11.02 -
20.01 -
5.00 10.00
78.07 92.91
3277 30.32
62.41 48.38
4.08 4.08
{4.08) {4.08)
85.18 78.71

No frade or other receivabies are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks:

- On current / cash credil accounts - Balances with banks
- Deposits

Less : Shown under other non current financial assets

0.08 0.06
53.85 8.07
9.07 4.89
(9.07) {4.89)
54.03 8.13
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RCCPL Private Limited
(Rs. in crores)

As at As at

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Other Current Financial Assets

{At amortized cost)

Fixed Deposits with Others - 36.36
Incentive receivable® 293.83 191,77
Mark to Market Receivable - 2.32
293.83 230.45

* The Company’s manufacturing plants at Maihar (Madhya Pradesh), Kundanganj (Utlar Pradesh} and Butibori (Maharashra } are eligible for
governmenl grant in the form of incentives of 75% in case of Madhya Pradesh, 80% in case of Uttar Pradesh and 25% in case of
Maharashtra of the VAT / CST / GST pursuant {o industrial Promotion Pelicy, 2010 (MP Mega Project Policy), Infrastructure investment
Policy, 2012 {UP Mega Project Policy} and Package Scheme of Incentive 2007 { Maharashra 2007 scheme), respectively.

Other Curront Assets
{ Unsecured, Considered Good )

Prepaid expenses 6.13 6.14
Advance to vendors 55.98 34.91
Advance toc employees 0.30 0.32
Balances with Governiment & Stafutory Authorities 156.58 105.12
QOther Advances 0.58 0.61

219.55 147,10

Equity Share Capital

Autherised :

40,00,00,600 (31 March 2020- 40,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each 400.00 400.00
400.00 400.00

issued, subscribed & fully paid up

31,28,23,000 ( 31 March 2020G- 31,28,23,000 } eguity shares of Rs. 10 /- each 312.82 312.82
312.82 312,82

{a) Terms/ rights aftached to equity shares

i) The Company's equily shares have a par value of Rs. 10/- each. ‘Halder of equity shares is enfifled to one vole per share.

ii) In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive assets of the company, if any remaining after
distribution of all preferential accounts. The distribulion will be in proportion {o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{b} Reconcitiation of number of shares ouistanding

At the beginning of the year 31.28 31.28
issued during the year

Qutstanding af the end of the year 31.28 31.28
¢) Shares held by Holding Company

Birla Corparation Limited ' 31.28 31.28
% holding 100% 100%

d) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Biria Corporation Limited 31.28 31.28
% holding 100% 100%




RCCPL Private Limited
(Rs. in crores)

As af As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Long Term Borrowings
At Amoriised Cost
Secured
Loan from Banks

Rupee term loans 2,339.65 2419.36

Foreign currency term loans 389.78 82.08
Unsecured
Loan from Banks

Foreign currency term loans 65.45 90.22

From related pardy
10% Redeemalde Cumulative Preference Shares® 100.00 100.00

* Subscribed by Bida Carporation Limited (Holding Company)

2,804.88 2,601.66
Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings at the year end (Refer note no 18)
Secured
Loan from Banks
Rupee term loans 91.G1 100.05
Foreign currency term loans 58.29 58.52
Unsecured
Loan from Banks
Foreign currency term loans 21.82 22.55
Erom related party
10% Redeemabie Cumulative Preference Shares 100.00 -
269.12 179.12
2,625.76 2,5612.54
For security detaits - Refer footnote below Note 32
Other Non Current_Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits from customers 159.38 142.57
Secunty Deposits - Others 11.37 11.01
Lease Liabilities* 65.71 7.22
*Refer note no 37
236.46 160.80
Provisions
Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity 2.29 1.06
Compensated absences 10.65 7.78
Others
Provision for mine closure expenses 8.61 475
21.55 13.59
Movement of Provision for mine closure expenses
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,75 4.34
Additions 3.86 0.41
Amount paid - -
Balance at the end of the year 8.81 4,75

Pravision for mine closure expenses represents estimates made towards the expected expendifure for restoring the mining area and other
obligatory expenses as per the approved mine closure plan. The timing of the outflow with regard to the said malter would be in a phased
manner based on the progress of excavation of minerals and consequential restoration cost.

Borrowings

Secured
Suppliers credit from banks in foreign currency - 20.50

- 20.50

Working Capital L.oans of Rs. 20.50 crores from banks are secured by ranking pari passu hyphothecation of Current Assets viz. Raw
Material, Stock in trade, Consumable Stores and Books Debts, both Present & Future and further by way of second charge on movable and
immovable fixed assets pertaining to Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh and Goal mines located at Sial Ghogri,
Madhya Pradesh, ranking pari passu with other lender banks.

e T e
/,//’E:mu_&’ii ATYAR s

S
7 NEW DELH
o, N FRN 106208
a8 b

TERFD ACCO




17

18

19

20

RCCPL Private Limited

Trade payables

Trade payables-Cthers
Trade payables-Related Parlies
Total Qutstanding dues to micro, smali and medium enterprises

(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
180.32 166.39
12.34 7.64
1212 0.97
204.78 175.00

Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 to the extent of confirmation received,

The principal amount and the inferest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year.

Principal

Interest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amourd of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payabie even in the succeeding
years, unlil such date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the smali
anterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under seclion
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Other Financial Liabllities

Current maturities of leng-{erm borrowings {refer note no. 13)
L.ease Liabilities

Interest acerised but not due on borrowings

Interest accrued Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital
Employee Benefils Payable

Retention money payabie

Payable for capital expenditure

MTM on Foreign exchange forward contracis

Others Payabte

Provisions

Provisions for employee benefits
Compensated absenses

Other Current Liabilities

Advance from Cuslomers
Statutory dues payable

147 0.97
269.12 179.12
2.51 0.63
2.58 0.37
41.45 32.81
21.22 20.18
59.40 49.08
60.37 gz2.11
3.87 -
192.58 204.86
653.10 578.16
0.74 0.74
0.74 0.74
48.97 32.05
94.73 31.13

143.70 63.18
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RCCPL Private Limited

Revenue from Operations

Sale of products

Finished goods
Cement
Clinker
Gypsum

Cther Operating Revenue-
Scrap Sales
Incentives and subsidies
(Refer footnote to Note no 10)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

The relevant disclosures in terms of said ind AS 115 are stated herein:
The disaggregation of the Company's revenue from customers are given in note no. 21,

Informaticn about Receivables, Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers:

{Rs. in crores)

Trade Receivables

Confrac! Liabilities
Advances from Customers

Reconciling the amount of Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the Contracied Price:

Revenue as per contracted price

Less: Sales Claims

Less: Rebate & Discounts

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Other Operating Revenues

Revenue from Operations

Timing of Revenue recognition
Goods or Services fransferred at a poini in time
Total Revenue from Operations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsalisfied) as at Balance Sheet date are, as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
2.477.03 2.321.85
182.37 143.44

2.68 12.40
2,662.08 2,477.69
2.90 322

164.60 160.30
2,829.58 2,641.21
95.18 78.71

48.97 32.05
2,807.85 2,644.28
145.77 166.59
2,662.08 2.477.69
167.50 163.52
2,829.58 2,641.21
2,829.58 2,641.21

Advances from Customers

48,97

32.05

Management expects that the entire transaction price aliotied to the unsatisfied contract as at the end of the reporting period will be recognised

as revenue during the next financial year.

Other Income

Interest income
from Fixed Deposits
Other Interest
Insurance Claim Received
£xcess Provision for Doubtful Debts writlen back
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund (FVTPL)
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund
Profit On Sale Of Assels
Miscellaneous Income

Cost of Materials Consumed

Raw materials consumed

Purchases of traded goods

Purchases of traded gocds - Gypsum

1.18 0.74
1.21 1.58
1.97 0.32
- 0.68
0.05 G.29
3.12 1.80
0.02 -
2.12 0.93
9.67 6.34
48575 455.08
247 11.83
2.47 11.83
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(Rs. in crores)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Stock at the end of the year
Finished goods 22.63 54.95
Work In Progress 15.19 30.85
37.82 B5.80
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 54 .95 32.8%
Work in Progress 30.85 28.02
85.80 60.91
47.98 (24.89)
Employee Benefits Expense
Sataries and wages 91.30 98.66
Contribution to provident and other funds 3.70 3.4%
Gratuity 1.84 1.59
Compensated absences 3.44 2.31
Staff welfare expenses 219 2.71
102.47 108.76
Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company has condributed the following amounts during the vear
Provident Fund 2.65 2.54
Superannuation Fund 6.04 0.04
Pension Fund .90 0.84
Change in benefit gbligations Gratuity
Benefit obligation at the begining 9.59 7.12
Current service cost 1.96 1.62
Interest expense 0.63 0.51
fasl service cost plan amendments - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses 0.81 0.7
Benefits paid (0.35) (0.37)
Benefit obligation at the end 12.64 9.59
Change in Plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 8.53 6.87
Interest income 0.61 0.54
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.05) 0.1
Employers Contributions 1.26 1.1
Fair value of plan assets at end 10.35 8.53
Funded status surplus/ (deficit} (2.23) {1.08)
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss
Service cost 1.86 1.62
Past service cost- plan amendments - .
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset 0.02 (0.03)
Capitalization {0.14)
Charged to P&L 1.84 1.59
Remeasurement recognised in QCI
Actuarial (gains) / losses 0.81 0.71
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.05 {0.11)
0.86 0.60
Actuarial assumptions
Mortality - Indian assured Lives Mortality {2006-08) Utlimate
Discount rate 6.30% 6.70%
Salary escalation raie 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal rate 4.00% 4.00%
Sensitivity analysis due to change in discount rate
Defined benefit obligation on plus 100 bps {(1.07) (0.82)
Defined benefit obligation on minus 100 bps 1.23 0.94
Sensitivity analysis due to change in salary escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation on plus 100 bps 1.21 0.93
Defined benefi{ obligation on minus 100 bps (1.07) (0.82)
Maturity profile of defined benefil obtigations
Within 1 year 1.04 0.72
1-2 year 0.57 0.67
2-3 year 0.71 0.55
3-4 year 1.25 0.68
4-5 year 1.20 1.20
5-10 years 13.10 11.04
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Finance Cosis

Interest on Term Loans

interest on Working capital Loans

On Deposits and Olhers

Preference Shares Dividend Expenses

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment {o borrowing costs
Other borrowing costs

Unwinding finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assels
Amortization of intangibie assets
Less: Transfer to Capital work-in-progress

QOther Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses
Stores, Spare Parts Consumed

Packing Material Consumed

Power & Fuel

Repairs to buildings

Repairs to machinery

Royalty & Cess

Freight & Material Handling on Inter Unit Transfer
Other Manufacturing Expenses

Selling_and Administration Expenses
Discount, selling and distribution expenses
Brand Royaity
Freight and forwarding expenses
Insurance
Rent
Repairs to Other Assets
Rates & Taxes
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Payments fo auditors
Audit fees
Quarterly Reviews and Other Certification
Reimbursement of expenses
Directors Fees**
Directors Commission**
Loss on sale/discard of Fixed Assets & CWIP {Net)*
Net loss on foreign currency translations
Professionat fees
Bank Charges
Miscellaneous expenses

{Rs. in crores}

Year ended

Year ended

31,03,2021 31.03.2020
154.11 182.45
0.75 4.45
.27 8.38
8.65 5.84

. 4.35
0.92 0.89
3.23 2.69
175.93 209.06
173.51 166.32
1.15 1.00
(0.31) (©.17)
174.45 167.15
71.69 67.64
94.88 90.41
394.47 418.58
2.87 3.30
17.72 20.11
73.74 74.21
79.13 6327
45.42 41.27
45.40 43.77
29.99 28.84
458.29 462.70
5.79 3,05
7.73 8.46
15.26 15.61
21.50 3.44
15.11 21.55
0.18 0.18
8.12 0.09

- 0.01
0.50 0.40

0.32 .

14.06 11.39
6.85 1.67
3.54 2.64
4.01 2.86
47.91 50.74
1,455.48 1,436.19

*Considering the present business scenario and COVID 19 implications, the company has taken strategic decision to prioritise the Capital
expenditure. Some of the projects expansion are not much viable or strategically nof advisable to move ahead, therefore, Company has taken

a cautious strategic decision 1o charge off the expenses incurred under those projects.

** Refer Note No, 33

Earning per Share

The computation of basic / diluted earning/ ( 1oss) per share is set out below

Net Profit / (Loss} after current and deferred tax

No of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

No of Shares outstanding at the end of the period

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
EPS (Rs.) - Basic and Diluted

T e,
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276.36
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000

8.80

139.22
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,00¢

4.45




31

i)

i)

iv

=

v)

vi)

vii)

32

RCCFL Private Limited

{Rs. in crores)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Commitments and Contingencies
a. Centingent Liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
Demand for Eniry tax including interest thereon under Bihar Value Added Tax Act 181 101
2005. Appeal file before Additional Commissioner { Appeals } ’ '
Demand for Entry Tax including interest thereon under Bihar Value Added Tax Act 096
2005. Appeal filad before Additional Commissioner ( Appeals ) ' )
Dissallowance of transition amount claimed under the Bihar Goods and Services Tax 0.68 068
Act, 2017. Appeal filed before Comissioner ( Appeals) ' '
Demand frem Collector of Stamps, Chhindwara mine lease related to Sial Ghogri 4.38 4.38

Appropriation of Bank guazantee as per clause 10.1 of Coal Mine Devefopment and
Production Agreement { CMDPA ) in respect of Sial Ghoghri Coal Mine under Coal 14.16 10.42
bearing Areas ( A&D) Act, 1957 being contested before Hon'ble High Courl of Delhi

Other Claims / Dispute pending in various legal forum 0.43 0.43

Demand for collection of additional stamp duty for Lime Stene Mines. 8.31 §.31

b. Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 412.50

provided for {net of advances) 689.10

n respect of the malier in note no. 31(a), future cash oulflows are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various
forums / authorities. Furthermore, there is ne possibilities of any reimbursemenis o be made to the company from any third party .

Assets pledaed as securify

Current

Financial assels - Trade Receivables 95.18 78.71
Nen-financial assets - Invenlories 220,38 20512
Total current assets pledged as security 315.56 283,83

Nen-current

lL.and 283.43 28217
Buildings 381.08 374,09
Plant & Machinery 1.851.13 1,730.62
Others Tangible Assets 245.54 242.75
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 2,561.18 2,629.63
cwiP 1,650.92 1,134.03

Long term borrowing are secured by (Refer Note 13)

Rupee term loans from banks (Secured) - Consortium
Term loan of Rs 1048.22 creres (excluding unameortised portion of processing fee and including cureent maturities) carries rate of interest @
1yr MCLR plus spread upto 0.35% p.a. The loan is secured by way of first charge on alf present and future movable and immovable fixed
assels pertaining to projects at Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uftar Pradesh and Cozl mines focated at Sial Ghogri, Madhya
Pradesh, ranking pari passu with other lender bank (s) and second charge on entire current assets of the Company ranking pari passu with
other lender bank {s). The balance amount of loan is repayabte in 31 unequal quarterly installments in the following manner:

Rs.5.84 crores repayable in 1 installment in June, 2021

Rs.51.71 crores repayable in 3 equal quarterly installments from September, 2021 to March, 2022

Rs.120.88 crores repayabie in 4 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2022 to March, 2023

Rs.265.93 crores repayabie in 8 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2023 to March, 2025

R5.507 .68 crores repayabile in 14 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2025 to September, 2628

Rs.95.08 crores repayable in December, 2028

Rupee Term Loan from Axis Bank
Term Loan of Rs 275.30 crores {excluding unamorlised porlion of processing fee and including current maturities) carries rate of interest @
7.25% p.a. uplo 16.02.2026 and thereafler @ 1yr MCLR. This loan is secured by way of subservient charge on all present and future movable
and immovable fixed assels of the Company except assets relating 1o Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh. Further the
loan is secured by Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company viz., Birla Corperation Limited. The balance amout of loan is repayable in 30
unequat quartesly instaliments in the following manner:
Rs.24.36 crores repayable in 4 equal guarterly installments from May, 2021 fo February, 2022
Rs.48.72 crores repayable in 6 equal guarterly installments from May, 2022 to August, 2023
Rs.20.01 crores repayable in 2 equal guarterly installments from Nov, 2023 (o February, 2024
Rs.172.55 crores repayable in 17 equal quarterly instaliments from May, 2024 to May, 2028
Rs.9.66 crores repayable in August. 2028
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(Rs. in crores)
Year ended Year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Rupee term loans from banks {Secured) - Consortium - Mukutban Project - Sanctioned Limit Rs.1625 Crores
Term loan of Rs. 881.26 crores {amount outstanding as on 31.03.2021) {excluding unamortised portion of processing fee) (rate of interest @
1yr MCLR plus spread of 0.21% to 0.30% p.a) from Bank (s} is secured by way of first pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the cement plant
(present & future) at Mukutban , Maharashira and first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets of Sutibori Plani. 2nd pari-passu charge on
entire curient assels (both present & future) of the company. The sanctioned loan of Rs.1625 crores is repayable in 34 unequal quarterly
installments starting from September 2022 and ending on December 2030 in the following manner:

Rs.4.08 crores repayable in 1 quarierly instaliment in Seplember, 2022

Rs.12.26 crores repayable in 3 equal quarteriy installments from December, 2022 to June, 2023

R&.20.26 crores repayable in 1 quarterly instaliment in September, 2023

Rs.61.18 crofes repayable in 3 equal quarterly installments from December, 2023 to June, 2024

Rs.32.40 crores repayable in 1 quarterly installent in Seplember, 2024

Rs.97.89 crores repayabie in 3 equat quarterly instaliments from December, 2024 1o June, 2025

Rs.161.98 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly instaliments from September, 2025 to June, 2026

Rs.163.14 crores repayable in 4 equal quarierly installments from September, 2026 o June, 2027

Rs.105.30 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly installiments from September, 2027 to December, 2027

Rs.563.03 crores repayable in 1 guarterly instaliment in March, 2028

Rs.53.23 crores repayable in 1 quarterly installment in June, 2028

Rs.311.71 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly installments from September, 2028 to June, 2028

Rs.326.28 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly instaliments from September, 2029 to June, 2030

Rs.111.15 crores repayable in 1 quarterly installment in Seplember, 2030

Rs.111.12 crores repayable in 1 quarteriy installment in December, 2030

Rupee term foan from State Bank Of India - Kundanganj Project - Sanctioned Limit Rs.190 Crores
Term loan of Rs. 83.80 crores (amount outstanding as on 31 03.2021}) carries rate of inferest @ 1yr MCLR plus spread of 0.30% p.a. This
loan is secured by way of first charge on all present and future mavable and immovable fixed assets perlaining to projects at Maihar, Madhya
Pradesh and Kundanganj, Utlar Pradesh and Coal mines located at Sial Ghogri, Madhya Pradesh, sanking part passu with other lender bank
(s) and second charge an entire current assels of the Company ranking pari passu with other lender bank {s), The sanctioned loan of Rs.190
crores is repayable in 28 unequal quarierly installments starling from December 2022
and ending on December 2029 in the following manner:
Rs.1.90 crores repayable in 2 equal quarderly instaliment from December, 2022 to Margh, 2023
RR5.9.50 crores repayabie in 4 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2023 to March, 2024
Rs.19.00 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2024 to March, 2025
Rs.30.40 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly instaflments from June, 2025 to March, 2026
Rs.36.10 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly installments from June, 2026 to March, 2027
Rs.68.40 crores repayable in 8 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2027 to March, 2028
Rs.24.70 crores repayable in 2 equal guarterly installments from June, 2026 to Septembey, 2029

Rupee Term Loan from Axis Bank {(WHRS) - Rs.65 crores

Term Loan of Rs.65.00 crores (excluding unamortised portion of processing fee and including current maturities) carries rate of interest @
7.25% p.a. upto 16.02,2026 and thereafter @ 1yr MCLR. This loan is secured by entire movable and immovable fixed assets of Maihar,
Madhya Pradesh, both present and future ranking pari passu with other lender banks. The balance amoun! of [oan is repayable in 31 equal
quarterly instaliments of Rs.2 crores each from 30.08.2021 6l 31.12.2028 and last instaliment of Rs.3 crores payable in March, 2029,

Foreign Currency Loans from banks (Secured)

External Commercial Borrewing from DBS Bank Lid., Singapore of Rs. 25.07 crores (USD 3.43 millions) (excluding unamortised portion of
processing fee and including current maturities) carries rate of inferest of 1M LIBOR plus 175 bps p.a. The loan is secured by way of first
charge on all present and future movable and immovable fixed assets pertaining {0 Maihar and Gendavali in Madhya Pradesh,Kundanganj in
Uttar Pradesh, ranking pari passu with other lender banks (s) and second charge on entire current assets of Maihar and Kundangan; ranking
pari passu with other fender banks {s), The balance amour of loan is repayable in remaining 4 equal quarterly installments of USD 0.85
miilions each (June, 2021 {o March, 2022).

Fareign Currency Loans from banks (Secured)

Foreign Currency Term Loan from Axis Bank Lid,, of Rs. 369.17 crores (USD 50.48 milliens} (including current maturifies} carries rate of
interest @ 7.40% p.a. (including hedging cost). The loan is secured by way of first charge on afl present and filure movable and immovable
fixed assets pertaining to projects at Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh and Coal mines located at Sial Ghogri, Madhya
Pradesh, ranking pari passu with other lender bank (s) and second charge on entire current assels of the Company ranking pari passu with
other lender bank (s). The balance amount of loan is repayable in 31 unequal quarterly installments in the foliowing manner:

Rs.31.22 crores repayable in 4 equal quarerly instaflments from September, 2021 to March, 2022

Rs.38.98 crores repayable in 4 equal quareriy installments from June, 2022 to March, 2023

Rs.85.75 crores repayable in 8 equal quarery installments from June, 2023 to March, 2025

Rs.163.71 crores repayable in 14 equal quarierly installments from June, 2025 to Seplember, 2028

Rs.49.51 crores repayable in December, 2028
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Foreign Currency Loans from banks (Unsecured)

{Rs. in crores}
Year ended Year

ended

31.03.2021 31.63.2020

Externat Commercial Borrowing from Deutsche Bank, Germany of Rs 65.45 crores {USD 8.95 millions) {including current maturities) carries
rate of interest of 6M LIBOR plus 175 bps p.a. The loan is secured by way of Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company viz., Birla
Corporation Limiled The balance amount of loan is repayable in 8 semi-annual equal installments of USD 1.49 millions (September, 2021 to

March, 2024).

10% cumulative Preference Share (unsecured}

100 lakhs Preference shares of Rs. 100 each are held by the holding company viz , Birla Corporation Limited carrying voting rights as
prescribed under section 47(2) of the Companies Act 2013. The preference shares will be redeemed in December 2021. The nen convertible
preference share carry preference share righl vis-a-vis equity shares of the company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment of

capital in the event of winding up.

Related Party disclosures as perind AS 24

Birla Corporation Limited

{Hoiding Company)

Purchase of gocds

Purchase of services

Brand Royalty paid

Sale of goods

Sale of Services

Reimbursement of expenses paid

Provision for Dividend on Preference shares (Expense)
Balances outstanding

Trade payable

Provision for Dividend on Preference shares payable
Corporate Guaraniee given to Banks #

# to the extent of foan outstanding

Vindhya Telelinks Ltd

(Entity in repect of which Holding Company is an Associate)
Sale of goods

Purchase of goods

Balances outstanding
Trade payable

Key Manageriai Persons (KMP)

Wholefime Direclor
Mr. Pracheta Majumdar (w.e f. 27.07.2018)

Non Executive Directors
Mr. Harsh V. Lodha, Mr. V. Swarup, Mr. A. Srinivasan
Mr. Anup Singh, Mr. P. Majumdar, Ms, Chitkala Zutshi.

Sitting fee paid to non executive directors
Mr. Harsh V. Lodha

Mr. V. Swarup

Mr. A. Srinivasan

Mr. Anup Singh

Ms. Chitkala Zutshi

Commission paid to non executive directors
Mr. V. Swarup

Mr. A. Srinivasan

Mr. Anup Singh

Ms. Chitkala Zutshi

Balances gufstanding
Mr. V. Swarup

Mr. A. Srinivasan

Mr. Arup Singh

Ms. Chitkala Zutshi

256,87
24.00
29.99

334.00
13,77

0.57

12.34
41.46
340.75

012
279

0.07
0.12
0.12
0.12
0.06

0.08
0.08
0.08
0.08

0.07
0.07
0.07
0.07

212.37
24.38
28.84

207,61

5.84

7.64
32.81
378.12

0.06
0.29

0.05

0.05
0.10
0.10
g.10
0.05
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{Rs. in crores)

Operating Segment as per Ind AS 108

The managing director of the company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by ind AS.108 - Operating
Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by industry
classes. Accordingly, segment information has been presented. In the opinion of lhe management, there is only one segment -"Cement & clinker* which
includes products of similar nature, risks and returns. So disclosure of primary segment and geagraphical segment are not applicable.

Fair value of Financiat Assets and Financiat Liabilities {(Current & Non Current}
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Particulars FVTPL Amortized EVIRL Amortized
Cost E— Cost

Financial Assets
Invesiment
- Mutual Funds 78.07 92.91
Trade Receivables 95.18 7871
Mark to Market Receivable - 2.32
Cash and Cash Equivalents 54.03 8.13
Incentive receivable 363.01 256.33
Bank Deposils 9.07 41.25
Security deposits 2551 24.36
Total Financial Assets 78.07 546.80 95,23 408.78
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 2,894 88 271216
Trade Payables 204.78 175.00
Interest acerued on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital 41.45 32.81
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2.58 0.37
Employee Benefits Payable 21.22 20.18
Retention money payable 59.40 : 45.08
Payable for capital expenditure 60.37 9z 1
MTM on Foreign exchange forward contracts 3.87 -
Lease Liabilities 68,22 7.85
Others Payable 192.58 204.86
Securily Deposits from customers 158.38 142.57
Security Deposits - Others 11.37 11.01
Total Financial Liahiiities 3.87 3,716.23 - 3,448.00

Other Notes
The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, frade receivables, trade payabies, short term borrowings, and other financial
liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments.

For Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values.

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair vatues in the fair
value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inpufs including counterparly credit visks, which has been assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on the discounted cash fiows using a current borrewing rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values
in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including own credit risks, which was assessed as on the balance sheet date to be
insignificant.

During the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 there were no ransfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfer
inte and ouf of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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Explanation to the fair value hierarchy

{Rs. in crores)

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, quoted invesiments at fair value al each reporling date. Fair vaiue is the price that wouid be
received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participanis at the measurement date. All assets and
liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financiai statements are calegorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowes! level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity
instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing
price as al the reporting period. The mutuwal funds are valued using the closing NAV.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded
bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as lttie as possible on enfity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs reguired to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equily securities, contingent consideration included in
level 3.

Assets and l.abilities measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurements

. 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Particulars T T
Level Level 2 Level 3 Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Investment
- Mutual Funds 78.07 82.91 - -
Foreign Exchange Contract (MTM) - 2.32 - -
Total Financial Assets 78.07 - - 95.23 - -
Financial Liabilities
Foreign Exchange Contract (MTM) 3.87 - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 3.87 . - - - -

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit disk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed 1o and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the

financial statements,

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cash and cash equivalents, trade Diversification of bank

Ageing analysis

Credit risk receivables, derivative financial assets i deposits, cradit fimits and
A Credit rating .
and other financial assets tetter of credit
Availability of committed
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts  |credit lines and borrowing
limites

Marleet risk - foreign exchange

Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Foreign currency options

Future commercial transaclions
recognised financial assets and liabilities
net denominated in Indian rupee (INR)

Cash flow forecasting
Sensilivity analysis
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(Rs. in crores)
Capital management

(a} Risk management
The Company's objeclives when managing capital are to:

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so thal they can continue 1o provide returns for shareholders and benefils for other stakeholders.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivelents) divided by Totat equity (as shown in the balance sheet)
The gearing ratios were as follows:

R 31 March 31 March

Particulars —-_2“6"'“_2_1% T@———
Debt 280488 | 271216
Less: Cash and bank balances including mutual fund 132.10 137.40
Net Debt 2,762.78 2.574.76
Total Equity 1,603.61 1,228.89
Net debt 1o equity ratio 1.84 210

Note- Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowing including current matusities of long term debt

Credit risk

The credit risk is the risk of financial foss arising from counter party failing to discharge an obfigation. The credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits
and credit worthiness of customers on continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted, obtaining necessary approvals for credit and taking security
deposits from trade channels.

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue frade receivable. The company follows the simplified approach for recognisation of
impairment loss. The expecied credit loss is based on historical loss experience and analysis of individual customer account balances.

Age of receivables As at As at
31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Within the credit period 65.98 4211
0-30 days past due 13.88 23.24
31-60 days past due 5.72 4.76
61-180 days past due 3.84 4.41
More than 180 days past due 9 .84 827
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance -
As at As at
31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Balance at the beginning of the year (4.08) (4.76)
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables - 0.68
Balance af the end of the year {4.08) {4.08)

Liguidity Risk
The Company determines its fiquidity requirement in the short, medium and long term. This is done by drawings up cash forecast for short term and long

term needs.

The Company manage its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any significant delay or stress. Such risk is
managed through ensuring operationat cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent position. The management has
arranged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity monitoring future cash flow and fiquidity on a regular basis
Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in cerlain mutuat funds and fixed deposit which provide flexibility to liquidate Besides, it generaliy has
certain undrawn credit facililies which can be assessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed at regular basis.
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{Rs. in crores)
Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars On Demand Lessthan | 1yearsto$ | More than 5 Total
== — | Oneyear years years
Non-derivative
Trade payables 204.78 204.78
Borrowings
Rupee Term Loan - 91.01 $30.19 1,332.48 2,353.68
Foreign Currency Term Loan - 78.10 214.64 166.94 459,68
Prefrence Share Capital - 100.00 - - 100.00
Cther finangial fiabilities
Payable on behalf of employees - 21.22 - - 21.22
Interest accrued on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital - 41.46 - - 41.45
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 2.58 - - 2.58
Security Deposits from customers™ - - - 159.38 159.38
Security Deposits - Others - - 11.37 11.37
Retention money payable - 50.40 - B 59.40
Payable for capital expenditure . 60.37 - . 60.37
Finance fease obligations - 2.51 16,09 4962 68.22
Others Payable - 192.58 - - 192.58
Totail - 854,01 1,172.29 1,708.42 3,734.72
Derivative
Foreign Exchange forwards contracts - 3.87 - - 3.87
As at 31 March 2020
Particulars On Demand kessthan | lyearsto5 | Morethan§ Total
R = | QOne year years years —
Non-derivative
Trade payables 175.00 - - 175.00
Borrowings
Rupee Term Loan - 100.05 869.61 1,468.27 2,438.23
Foreign Currency Term l.oan - 79.08 93.58 - 172.66
Prefrence Share Capital - - 100.00 - 100.00
Suppliers Credit 20.50 20.5¢
Other financial ligbiiities
Payable on behalf of employees 20,18 - - 20.18
fnierest accrued on Cumulalive Redeemable Preference Share Capital - 32.81 - - 32.81
Interest accrued but not due on berrowings - 0.37 - - 0.37
Security Deposits from customers - - - 142,57 t42.57
Security Deposits - Others - - 11.01 - 1.1
Retention money payable - 49.08 - - 49.08
Payable for capital expenditure - 92 11 - - 92.11
Finance lease obligations - 0.63 3.42 3.80 7.85
Others Payable 204.85 - - 204.85
Total - 774.66 1,077.92 1,614.64 3,467.22
Derivative
Foreign Exchange ferwards contracts - -

The amounis are gross and undiscounted, and include confractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements (if any). The interest
payments on variable interest rate loans in the tables above reflect market forward inierest rates at the respective reporting dates and these amounts may
change as market interes! rates change. The fulure cash flows on derivative instruments may be different from the amount in the above tables as exchange
rates change. Except for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows inciuded in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or al
significantly different amounts. When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined with reference to conditions existing at
the reporting date.

Security Deposit classified under more than 5 years maturily pertain fo * Dealer Trade Cepasit * which are refundable only afler surrender of dealership
subject to clearance of oulstanding dues
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Market Risk

(Rs. in crores)

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three type of risks: Foreign Exchange Risk, interest Rate Risk and Other Price Rigk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Campany is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions of imporls and berrowing primarily with respect o USD and
Euro. The foreign currency transaction risk are managed through selective hedging programmes by way of forward contracts, currency swaps and interest
rate swaps including for underlying transactions having firm commitments or highly probable forecast of crystalisation.

The Company has taken certain Swap instruments for hedging the borrowings in foreign currency and has recognised a gainfioss in the Statement of Profit
& Loss on measurement of said derivative instruments at fair value. On the reporting date, the fair value of derivative instrument is measured based upon

valuation recelved from the authorised dealer (Bank}.

Exposure to currency risk

The Campany's exposure fo foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

Particulars 31st March 2021
usD INR EUR | IR GBP INR

Financial Liabilities
Foreign Currency Term Loan 5.28 459.68
Suppliers Credit from bank - -
Interest Accrued but not due 0.01 0.64 - - - -
Trade Payables* 0.03 1.93 0.1 9.57 * 0.02
Derivative Instrument

Foreign Exchange Confract - Against Forgign Currency Term Loan (5.39) (394.23)

Foreign Exchange Contract - Against payable (0.01) {0.64) {0.07) (5.68) - -
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 0.93 67.38 0.04 3.98 - 0.02
Derivative Instrument

Foregign Exchange Contract - Against firm commitment 0.08 5.79 - - - -
** represents GBP 2450

Particulars 31st March 2020

Usb INR EUR INR GBP INR

Financial Liabilities
Foreign Currency Term Loan 2.28 172,66 - - - -
Suppliers Credit from bank 0.27 20.50 - - - -
Interest Accrued but not due - 0.3 - - -
Trade Payables 0.¢1 0.98 (.02 1.70 ** 0.02
Other current liabilities - - - - B
Derivative Instrument

Foreign Exchange Contract - Against payable (0.41) {30.75) - - - .
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk {liabilities) 2.15 163.70 0.02 1.70 - 0.02
Derivative Instrument

Fereign Exchange Contract - Against firm commitment (0.50) (37.47) (0.02) (1.42) - -

** represenis GBP 2450
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Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening {weakening) of the INR against USD and EUR as at 3ist March would have aflected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affecled equily and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that ali other

variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

{Rs. in crores}

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Particulars S::::;:;;y — !fmgact on e j;tmgact an
rofit before . rofit before s
tax Other Equity fax Other Equity
USD Sensitivity (Increase) 5% (3.37) {2.52) {8.18) (6.12)
USD Sensitivity (Decrease) 5% 337 2.52 818 612
EUR Sensitivity {Increase) 5% (0.20) (0.15) {0.G9) (6.06)
EUR Sensitivity {Decrease) 5% 0.20 0.15 0.co 0.06
GBP Sensitivity {Increase) 5% - " * -
GBP Sensitivily (Decrease) 5% * * * v

* Below Rounding Of Norms adopted by the Company

The Company is exposed to risk due to interest rate fluctuation on long term borrowings. Such borrowings are hased on fixed as welt as floating interest
rate. interest rate risk is delermined by current market interest rates, projecied debt servicing capability and view on future interest rate. Such interest rate
risk is actively evaluated and is managed through portfolio diversification and exercise of prepayment / refinancing options where considered necessary.

The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk on surplus funds parked in fixed deposits and Investments viz. mutuat funds, bonds. To manage such

risks, such investments are done mainly for shori durations, in line with the expected business requirements for such funds.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Fixed Rate Instruments
10% Cumulative Preference Share 100.00 100.00
100.00 100.C0
Variable Rate Instruments
Other Borrowings 2,813.36 2.610.89
Net Exposure 2,813.36 2.610.89

Sensitivity Analysis

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interast expense from borrowings a5 & result of changes in interest rates. This analysis assumes that all other

variatfes, in particular exchange rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Sensitivity % impact on | Sensitivity i—';lm Impact on
Analysis tax other equity §| Analysis tax other eguity
Interest Rate increase by 0.50% {14.07) {10.53) 0.50% {13.05) {$.77)
Interest Rate Decrease by 0.50% 14.07 10.53 0.50% 13.05 977
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The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit & loss

RCCPL Private Limited
(Rs. in crores)

Leasesg

The company has entered into operating feases of office peremises ,warehouses and vehicles elc. with no restrictions and are renewabie at the option of
sither of the pariies.
There are no sub leases. The company applies the * short term lease’ and lease of low value assels' recognition exemptions for these leases.

Particulars 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Interest on lease labilities 1.28 0.7
Depraciation of right of use assets 1.18 0.80
impact on the statement of profit and loss 2.42 1.51

Lease Lighilities Recongiliation

Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2020
Cpening Balance 7.85 8.32
Additions 61.15 -
Interest on lease liabilities 1.26 0.71
Repayment / Actual Rent (2.04) {1.18)
Closing Balance 68.22 7.85
Current 2.51 .83
Non Current 65.71 7.22

The maturity analysis of fease liabllities are disclosed in note no 35
The sffective interest rate for lease liabilities is 7.75% - 11.80% , with maturity batween 2021 -2043

The Company has made investment in AMP Solar Clean Power Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “investee company”) by way of equity shares
528,760 nos {PY 529,760) of the face value of Rs. 0.53 crores (PY .53 crore) 18.20% (PY 18.20%) and in Compulsorily convertible debentures 47,679 nos
{PY 47,679) of the face value of Rs. 4.78 {PY 4.78 crore) crores under Share Purchase, Subscription and Shareholders Agreement. Further, the Company
has entered into a long term power purchase agreement (‘PPA") with the investee company which is engaged in selling up a solar power plant. The
PPA has a lock in peried of 15 years wherainthe Company (alongwith the holding company) is required to purchase entire contracted power capacity from
the said plant.

The investment in equity shares in AMP Solar Clean Power Private Limited together with the holding Company is 26%. Considering the substance of the
transactions, in the opinion of the management, it is not considered as a related party under Ind AS 24/28. Accordingly, the invesiment in equity shares
and compulserily convertible debentures is recognized at amortised cost under "Security Deposits” Rs. 0.89 crores (PY .89 crore) as per the provision of
Ind AS 108 and the difference between amortised cost and investment value of Rs.4.44 crore on initial recognition is recognized under “Right of Lse”
during the year on commancment of operation (PY Rs.4.44 crore shown as Capital Advance).

Taking into consideration the terms and conditions of PPA, it is considered that the arrangement in respect of long term power purchase agreement
satisfies all the conditions of the lease as per IND AS 116.Accordingly ,Right of use and tease liability has been recegnised on commencement date .

Due to COVID-19 situation, there have been several restrictions imposed by the Governments across the globe on the travel, goods movement and
transportation considering public heaith and safety measures, which had impact on the Company's normal busingss operations by way of interruption in
production. supply chain disruption, unavailagility of personne! ete during the leckdown period. As per our current assessment, ne significant impact on
carrying amounts of inventories,intangible assets, trade receivables, investments and other financial assets is expected as on the balance sheet date. The
impact assessment of COVID-19 is continuing process given the uncertainities associated with its nature and duration. The company will continue to monitor
any malerial changes fo future econonic conditions.

Exnenditure incyrred on Corporate Social Responsibility

Details of expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as per Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with scheduie Il are as below:

Yearended Yearended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

a)_Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during_the vear: 3.65 2,16
Yet to be
In cash aid in cash Total

b) _Amount spent during the year

Construction/ Acquisition of any assets -
On purposes other than above ( included in Nate No 29 ) 4.19 - 4.19
Total 4.19 - 4.19
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Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 10th May 2021

As per our attached report of even date.

For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.109208W

Dy T

Ajay Gupta
Partner
Membership No.090104

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 10.05.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Place : Kolkata
Dated : 10.05.2021
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